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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Good morning. I

          3  apologize for the delay. We have several hearings

          4  occurring at the same time. My name is Diana Reyna

          5  and I am Chair of the Committee on Rules, Privileges

          6  and Elections. Before we begin I would like to

          7  introduce the other members of the Committee who are

          8  present. We'll begin with Council Member Leroy

          9  Comrie, who is on the receiving line. Council Member

         10  Erik Martin Dilan. To my right we have Council

         11  Member Letitia James, Council Member Maria Baez,

         12  Council Member Vinnie Gentile, Council Member Inez

         13  Dickens, Council Member Dan Garodnick, Council

         14  Member Lewis Fidler.

         15                 Today we have before us six

         16  candidates for our review, they are Anna Kril, a

         17  resident from Queens, and a candidate for

         18  designation by the Council's Queens Delegation

         19  subsequent appointment by the Mayor to the New York

         20  City Health and Hospitals Corporation Board of

         21  Directors, filling a vacant position for the

         22  remainder of a five-year term that will expire on

         23  March 20th, 2010.

         24                 Dr. John R. Maese, a resident from

         25  Brooklyn, and a candidate for redesignation by the
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          2  Council's Staten Island Delegation and subsequent

          3  reappointment by the Mayor to the New York City

          4  Health and Hospitals Corporation Board of Directors.

          5                 Dr. Maese will serve for the

          6  remainder of a five-year term that will expire on

          7  March 20th, 2011. Dr. Maese has been serving in a

          8  hold-over capacity.

          9                 Mr. Jeffrey Kay, a Queens resident

         10  and Mayoral appointment to the Taxi and Limousine

         11  Commission for the remainder of a seven-year term

         12  that expires on January 31st, 2012. Mr. Kay will

         13  fill a vacancy.

         14                 Dr. Lynne Richardson, a resident of

         15  Manhattan and Mayoral candidate and reappointment to

         16  the Board of Health for the remainder of a six-year

         17  term that expires on May 31st, 2012.

         18                 Dr. Richardson has been serving in a

         19  hold-over capacity.

         20                 Please turn off all cell phones or

         21  put them on vibrate.

         22                 Ms. Dara Ottley-Brown, a resident of

         23  the Bronx, Mayoral candidate for reappointment to

         24  the Board of Standards and Appeals as a lay member

         25  to serve for a six-year term that expires on July

                                                            6

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  10th, 2013.

          3                 Ms. Susan Hinkson, a resident of the

          4  Bronx, Mayoral reappointment to the Board of

          5  Standards and Appeals, as an architect for a

          6  six-year term that expires on July 10th, 2013.

          7                 We will begin with the candidates for

          8  Health and Hospitals Corporation, Board of

          9  Directors.

         10                 HHC is a public benefit corporation,

         11  charged with the duty of providing high-quality,

         12  dignified and comprehensive health care and

         13  treatment to the public, especially to those who

         14  cannot afford such services.

         15                 HHC's Board of Directors consists of

         16  16 members who administer HHC. Included within the

         17  Board's membership in addition to five ex-officio

         18  members are ten appointees of the Mayor, five of

         19  whom are designated by the Council for consideration

         20  by the Mayor. The term of office for directors is

         21  five years, vacancy filled under the terms of

         22  original appointment, directors are not compensated

         23  but are reimbursed for actual expenses.

         24                 Welcome, Ms. Kril, and Dr. Maese.

         25  Will you please raise your right hands and be sworn
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          2  in.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you swear or

          4  affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

          5  nothing but the truth?

          6                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If you can turn on

          8  your mics. And if you have an opening statement, now

          9  is the time to communicate that statement.

         10                 MS. KRIL: I'm very, very deeply

         11  honored to be considered to fill the vacancy of the

         12  Board of Directors for Health and Hospitals

         13  Corporation.

         14                 As a native New Yorker, born in New

         15  York City, from immigrant parents, I know how vital

         16  and critical the services that our hospitals deliver

         17  to the citizens of our City truly is.

         18                 I have a passion to assure that

         19  health care, the best health care, is delivered to

         20  everyone who needs it. That's my commitment, and as

         21  I said, I am very, very deeply honored to be

         22  considered for this position.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         24  Kril.

         25                 Dr. Maese.
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          2                 DR. MAESE: Yes, I would just like to

          3  thank the City Council for considering me to serve

          4  on the Board of the Health and Hospital Corporation

          5  for a second term. It has been an honor and a

          6  privilege. I am very proud of the good work done by

          7  the HHC. I wish to continue to serve on the Board of

          8  Directors, because the HHC provides leadership in

          9  the delivery of high quality health care to millions

         10  of patients in New York City.

         11                 I want to continue to contribute my

         12  expertise in the area of health care, safety and

         13  quality. By way of background, I'm a Board Certified

         14  internist. I'm also Board certified in geriatrics

         15  and emergency medicine. I have a background in

         16  performance improvement, peer review and computer

         17  application health care. My CB provides greater

         18  insight into my experience, however, it does not

         19  communicate the depth of caring that I hold for the

         20  people in the City of New York. I want to be able to

         21  give something back in the best way I know how, and

         22  the position with the HHC seems like an excellent

         23  venue for me to continue to express my affection for

         24  the City and contribute significantly to its

         25  betterment. And, again, I thank the Council for
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          2  considering me for this reappointment.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Dr.

          4  Maese. Are there any questions or comments? We've

          5  been joined by Council Member Jimmy Oddo, and we

          6  have Council Member Helen Sears.

          7                 I'd like to ask Council Member Jimmy

          8  Oddo, Council Member Leroy Comrie and Council Member

          9  Sears to speak.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         11  Chair.

         12                 Very quickly. In the last week or two

         13  I was watching Crosswalks and watched a repeat of a

         14  budget hearing chaired by the Health Committee head

         15  colleague Joel Rivera and the witnesses were Dr.

         16  Aviles and Laray Brown, and for those of you who saw

         17  it, you saw a raging Jimmy Oddo, and it might not

         18  have been my brightest moment, but, nonetheless, if

         19  I had to do it all over again, I would, and in a

         20  15-minute span I think I articulated the frustration

         21  of 500,000 people on Staten Island with HHC. The

         22  relationship has been dismal at best.

         23                 There is one shining thing that I

         24  hang my hat on with respect to that relationship,

         25  and that's Dr. Maese. He has been a wonderful
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          2  addition. He picks up the phone and calls me. I pick

          3  up the phone, I consult with him, he is a tremendous

          4  resource, and if we have a fighting chance to get

          5  what we are entitled to on Staten Island, to get a

          6  fair shake at a decent relationship with that

          7  entity, it will come as a result of the good work of

          8  Dr. Maese.

          9                 He had a little bit of a rocky first

         10  go-around, but I'm glad that we were able to

         11  withstand it, because he has been a fabulous

         12  addition to that Board and he's a great thing for

         13  Staten Island, and I would ask my colleagues to keep

         14  that in mind.

         15                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         17  Comrie.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good morning.

         19  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         20                 I just wanted to encourage my

         21  colleagues to support the nomination of Anna Kril to

         22  HHC. She was the overwhelming choice of the Queens

         23  Delegation, suggested by the person to speak next,

         24  Council Member Helen Sears. I've personally known

         25  Anna Kril for about ten years through her volunteer
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          2  work throughout Queens. She's been involved in so

          3  many organizations, that almost every time we turn

          4  around dealing with health issues, you're working

          5  with Anna Kril on a particular issue.

          6                 She is dedicated to not only just

          7  health issues but to making sure that emerging

          8  minority communities are aware of their health

          9  opportunities. She is the head of Sharing and

         10  Caring, which is working with people that are

         11  dealing with breast cancer. She is a young lady with

         12  a vibrant outgoing giving personality, and I think

         13  that she'll make a wonderful addition to the HHC

         14  Board and I encourage the members to vote for her.

         15  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         17  Member Comrie.

         18                 Council Member Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair. Before I just have a brief comment, I

         21  would like to note for the Committee members to know

         22  that we are joined by four of my interns, who are

         23  Owen White and Jessica Reano (phonetic), Kevin Ling

         24  and Marietta Gonzalez. And I can think of no finer

         25  committee for them to observe than this Committee,
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          2  and the authority that the Committee has.

          3                 So, I would like them all to stand

          4  up. Thank you very much. (Applause.)

          5                 The few words that I have to say

          6  about Anna Kril are brief, but extremely

          7  significant.

          8                 Her appointment to the Health and

          9  Hospital Corporation had, particularly that agency,

         10  that institution, has very great significance,

         11  because when we think of the mission of the Health

         12  and Hospital Corporation, it's to serve the poor,

         13  the suffering and the sick and they never lose sight

         14  of that mission.

         15                 There is no one that has more

         16  sensitivity to the sick than Anna Kril, who is a

         17  surviving breast cancer patient. She has a

         18  sensitivity for all the patients that she sees in

         19  hospitals, and health care has always been and

         20  continues to be a primary concern of hers. She is

         21  extremely dedicated. She gives of herself totally to

         22  any issue that she is with, and will make a great

         23  asset to the Board for her sensitivity, her

         24  knowledge, her wisdom, her caring about health care,

         25  and her complete dedication to the Borough of Queens
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          2  in the City of New York. So, I urge you all to

          3  support her nomination.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          6  Member Sears.

          7                 I wanted to just commend Ms. Kril for

          8  her work at Sharing and Caring. The organization I

          9  know services throughout the City of New York. I

         10  know that my own office has had the privilege of

         11  using the resources with unfortunate circumstances

         12  that we would hate to -- it's not an organization I

         13  would love to seek out often enough, but the service

         14  that you provide to women suffering with breast

         15  cancer is amazing and phenomenal, and I that will

         16  bring and contribute to women's health throughout

         17  the City of New York, as you are to become

         18  appointed.

         19                 I wanted to just share with the

         20  Committee and go on record, Ms. Kril sits as Chair

         21  of the Community Board 1 in Queens, confirmed in

         22  '87. I wanted to just find out the current status.

         23  Will you continue to serve on Community Board 1 as

         24  Chair?

         25                 MS. KRIL: If there would be no

                                                            14

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  conflict to serving with HHC, I would continue to

          3  serve on Community Board 1, depending, of course, I

          4  want to give 100 percent commitment to whatever

          5  Board I sit on, so it would be a balance of time, if

          6  I could honestly say I will be able to commit the

          7  energy I presently do, I would continue to serve on

          8  Community Board 1, if there is no conflict.

          9                 If there would be a conflict, then I

         10  have served Community Board 1 for 20 years, and I

         11  would do whatever is required in order to fulfill my

         12  duties on the Board for Health and Hospitals Corp.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         14  Kril.

         15                 So, just for advice and consent, we

         16  encourage you to continue to speak to the Conflicts

         17  of Interest Board and seek their approval or

         18  disapproval on matters that may raise potential

         19  conflicts of interests.

         20                 I'd like to ask anyone else if there

         21  is any questions. We will be moving forward to the

         22  TLC. The TLC consists of nine members appointed by

         23  the Mayor, all with the advice and consent of the

         24  Council, five of said members one resident of each

         25  of the boroughs of the City are recommended for
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          2  appointment by a majority vote of the Council

          3  Members of the respective borough.

          4                 Commission members are appointed for

          5  terms of seven years and can serve until the

          6  appointment and qualification of a successor,

          7  vacancies other than those that occur at the

          8  expiration of a term shall be filled for the

          9  unexpired term.

         10                 The Mayor may remove any such member

         11  for cause upon stated charges. The Mayor designates

         12  one member of the Commission to act as the

         13  Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer. The

         14  Chairperson shall have charge of the organization of

         15  his/her office and have authority to employ, assign

         16  and super-intend the duties of such officers and

         17  employees as may be necessary to carry out the

         18  provisions of Chapter 65 of the Charter.

         19                 The Charter provides that the

         20  Chairperson shall devote his/her full-time to this

         21  position, and as such, receive compensation as set

         22  by the Mayor. The Chair currently receives $170,222

         23  annually. Other members of the TLC are not entitled

         24  to compensation, the Commission is responsible for

         25  the continuance, further development and improvement
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          2  of the Taxi and Limousine Service in the City.

          3                 It shall be the further purpose of

          4  the Commission, consonant with the promotion and

          5  protection of public comfort and convenience to

          6  adopt and establish an overall public transportation

          7  policy, governing taxi, coach, limousine and

          8  wheelchair accessible and services as it relates to

          9  the overall public transportation network of the

         10  City.

         11                 The Commission is also responsible

         12  for establishing certain rates, standards and

         13  criteria for the licensing of vehicles, drivers and

         14  chauffeurs, owners and operators engaged in such

         15  services and for providing authorization to persons

         16  to operate commuter van services within the City.

         17                 Welcome, Mr. Kay. Would you please

         18  raise your right hand and be sworn in by counsel.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Will you swear

         20  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

         21  nothing but the truth?

         22                 MR. KAY: Yes.

         23                 (Witness sworn.)

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Mr. Kay, do you

         25  have an opening statement for us?
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          2                 MR. KAY: Sure. I wanted to thank

          3  everyone for considering my appointment this

          4  morning. I'm excited to be here and be a part of

          5  this. I think over the last nine or ten years that

          6  I've worked with City government, I've had a number

          7  of experiences that I can provide benefit to the

          8  TLC. I have worked on both City and State budget

          9  issues, dealing specifically with Transportation

         10  projects. I have worked intensely with the MTA, not

         11  only as an MTA Board member, but working on issues

         12  such as the MTA bus takeover, and most recently I've

         13  worked with the Mayor's Office and our

         14  Transportation Department putting together the

         15  long-term transit needs that we need for the City

         16  for the next 20 some odd years, and I think with the

         17  combination of that experience, I can bring support

         18  and help to the Taxi And Limousine Commission. So,

         19  thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Kay.

         22                 Do we have any questions?

         23                 I'd like to just mention that we

         24  urged the Administration to seek approval from the

         25  Conflicts of Interest Board, and it's duly noted in
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          2  our findings, considering the position that you hold

          3  right now and pursuant that there may be some

          4  potential conflict in the future you serving on the

          5  TLC, is there anything you would like to share or

          6  add?

          7                 MR. KAY: The Conflicts of Interest

          8  Board, we did receive notification of the Conflicts

          9  of Interest Board suggesting there is no conflict

         10  with my current position with the Administration,

         11  and the appointment on to the TLC.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I just want to

         13  share on the record a letter from the Conflicts of

         14  Interest Board. You have informed the Board that,

         15  Mr. Kay, as the Director of the Office, of the

         16  Mayor's Office, that he serves as the Mayor's

         17  representative on the Board of the Metropolitan

         18  Transportation Authority, managing the TLC and the

         19  Mayor's Office and implementing projects concerning

         20  the TLC. So, we just wanted to mention some of the

         21  items that we potentially saw as conflicts that

         22  perhaps may arise and we want to ensure and

         23  encourage that you continue to seek the advice and

         24  consent.

         25                 MR. KAY: Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

          3                 Mr. Kay, just on another note, I

          4  have, you know, there's a very large problem

          5  occurring where we have bases calling our office,

          6  apparently there is vehicles with TLC plates that

          7  have been monitored in the area pertaining to my

          8  district. I don't know if this is Citywide, in the

          9  role that you will be playing that you see to it

         10  that you start finding what investigative matters

         11  are occurring where vehicles with TLC plates out of

         12  State are picking up passengers, and the bases are

         13  communicating back to me that they're documenting

         14  their calls but by the time they get to the call,

         15  some other vehicle with out-of-state plates has

         16  picked up.

         17                 You know, the gypsy problem not only

         18  affects drivers in the City of New York or Livery

         19  Businesses, but it's also affecting the safety of

         20  our consumers, and so we want to assure that where

         21  there is abuse that we're enforcing and abiding by

         22  the law, as we try to enforce it throughout the

         23  City. So, I would appreciate if you can certainly

         24  look into this in your new role and old role?

         25                 MR. KAY: I'd be happy to.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

          3                 We will be moving on to the Board of

          4  Health.

          5                 The Board is part of the New York

          6  City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene. The

          7  Board's Chairperson is the Commissioner of the

          8  Department. The main function of the Board is to

          9  promulgate the New York City Health Code, which

         10  encompasses any matter within the jurisdiction of

         11  the Department.

         12                 The Department has jurisdiction to

         13  regulate on all matters affecting health in this

         14  City, including but not limited to mental health,

         15  mental retardation, alcoholism and substance

         16  abuse-related needs of City residents.

         17                 The scope of the Department's

         18  jurisdiction includes such diverse disciplines as

         19  communicable diseases, environmental health

         20  services, radiological health, food safety,

         21  veterinary affairs, water quality, pest control and

         22  vital statistics. New-emerging pathogens and

         23  biological warfare are the most recent additions to

         24  the Department's roster of concerns.

         25                 The Board also is charged with
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          2  certain administrative responsibilities, such as the

          3  issue in suspension or revocation of permits. For

          4  example, food vendor permits. The Board may declare

          5  a state of great and imminent peril, and take

          6  appropriate steps subject to Mayoral approval and

          7  declare certain conditions as nuisance and order

          8  that such conditions be abated or otherwise

          9  corrected.

         10                 Besides the Chairperson, the Board

         11  consists of ten members, five of whom shall be

         12  doctors of medicine, who must have at least ten

         13  year's experience in all or all of the following:

         14  clinical medicine, neurology, psychiatry, public

         15  health administration or college and university

         16  public health teaching. The other five members need

         17  not be physicians, but shall hold at least a Master

         18  Degree in either environmental, biological,

         19  veterinary, physical or behavioral health or science

         20  or rehabilitative science, or in a related field

         21  with at least ten years experience in their

         22  respective fields.

         23                 The Chairperson of the Mental Hygiene

         24  Advisory Board is required to be one of the ten

         25  Board members provided that such individual meets
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          2  the requirements for Board membership.

          3                 The nine Board members other than the

          4  Chairperson and the member who shall be the

          5  Chairperson of the Mental Health Advisory Board

          6  serve without compensation and are appointed by the

          7  Mayor for a term of six years. Welcome, Dr.

          8  Richardson. Will you please raise your right hand

          9  and be sworn in?

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you swear or

         11  affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

         12  nothing but the truth?

         13                 DR. RICHARDSON: I do.

         14                 (Witness sworn.)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Welcome. I want to

         16  ask if you have a statement to share with us? Now is

         17  the time to do so.

         18                 DR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Madam

         19  Chair.

         20                 I am Lynne Richardson. I am a native

         21  New Yorker and I currently have the pleasure of

         22  residing in Council Member Inez Dickens's district.

         23  I am a practicing emergency physician. My clinical

         24  practice is based at the Mount Sinai Hospital, and I

         25  also serve in the Emergency Department of Elmhurst

                                                            23

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Hospital Center in Queens, one of the New York City

          3  Health and Hospitals Corporation facilities.

          4                 I'm an Associate Professor of

          5  Emergency Medicine at the Mount Sinai School of

          6  Medicine, where I teach students and residents, and

          7  I'm also engaged in health services research. I'm

          8  interested in the areas of access to care and

          9  utilization of health services.

         10                 I have found my service on the Board

         11  of Health since 2001 to be extremely interesting and

         12  rewarding, and I look forward to continuing to serve

         13  the City, doing my best to protect the health of the

         14  public by continuing to serve in that capacity. I'm

         15  pleased to be here.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you so much,

         17  Dr. Richardson. And we're happy to have you. I know

         18  that Council Member Inez Dickens would like to share

         19  with us a few comments.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair. And thank you, Dr. Richardson, for

         22  agreeing to serve in such a capacity. Yes, Dr.

         23  Richardson lives in my district, but more

         24  importantly, I have known her family for more than

         25  30 years. She would be a great asset to the
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          2  Department of Health, and to our great City. She is

          3  knowledgeable, but she will serve with great concern

          4  for the public health for a City that often times is

          5  not insured, under-insured, and has severe health

          6  disparities among the communities.

          7                 I urge my colleagues for an

          8  affirmative vote.

          9                 Thank you, Dr. Richardson. And thank

         10  you, Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         12  Member Dickens.

         13                 Are there any questions or comments?

         14                 I will then move on to the last item.

         15  Board of Standards and Appeals.

         16                 The Board of Standards and Appeals

         17  consists of five commissioners, each appointed by

         18  the Mayor for a term of six years. The City Charter

         19  provides that one of the Board's members shall be a

         20  planner with professional qualifications and at

         21  least ten years experience as a planner.

         22                 One of the members shall be a

         23  registered architect, and shall have at least ten

         24  years experience as an architect, and one of the

         25  members shall be a licensed professional engineer,
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          2  and shall have at least ten years experience as an

          3  engineer. The particular qualifications of the two

          4  remaining members are not delineated in the Charter.

          5  The Mayor designates one of the members with the

          6  required experience of an architect, planner or

          7  engineer to serve as chair, and designates another

          8  member to serve as vice chair.

          9                 In the absence of the Chair, or in

         10  the event that a vacancy exists in the Office of the

         11  Chair, the Vice Chair acts as the Chair of the

         12  Board. No more than two members reside in any one

         13  borough. Each member of the Board receives a salary

         14  and may not engage in any other occupation,

         15  profession or employment. The Chair earns an annual

         16  salary of $166,884. The Vice Chair receives $155,205

         17  annually, while the remaining members earn annual

         18  salaries of $131,318.

         19                 The Board has the power to determine

         20  and vary the application of the zoning resolution

         21  and to issue special permits as authorized by the

         22  zoning resolution.

         23                 The Board may also consider appeals

         24  to vary or modify any rule or regulation or the

         25  provisions of any law relating to the construction

                                                            26

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  use, structural changes, equipment, alteration or

          3  removal of buildings or structures or vaults in the

          4  sidewalks or pertinent thereto where there are

          5  practical difficulties or unnecessary hardship in

          6  carrying out the strict letter of the law, so that

          7  the spirit of the law shall be observed, public

          8  safety secured and substantial justice done.

          9                 Welcome, Ms. Ottley-Brown and Ms.

         10  Susan Hinkson. Will you please raise your right hand

         11  and be sworn in?

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you swear or

         13  affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

         14  nothing but the truth?

         15                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: I do.

         16                 MS. HINKSON: I do.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'd like to ask

         18  Ms. Ottley-Brown if you have an opening statement

         19  now is the time to do so, followed by Ms. Susan

         20  Hinkson.

         21                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: I do.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         23                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: Good morning. I

         24  would like to begin by thanking you for voting in

         25  favor of my serving on the New York City Board of

                                                            27

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Standards and Appeals in the fall of last year. I

          3  have served on the Board for almost one year, and it

          4  has been a awesome experience.

          5                 It has been a true education for me,

          6  as I have learned about construction and development

          7  of real property, as well as the dynamics and

          8  variance of the special permit processes in New York

          9  City.

         10                 As a result I am appearing before you

         11  today seeking your approval to serve a full six-year

         12  term at the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         13                 I feel that this Board is integral to

         14  the fabric of the development of New York City and

         15  being reappointed as a Commissioner would be an

         16  honor.

         17                 This Board serves a very important

         18  function as regards construction and real estate

         19  development in New York City. By relieving the undue

         20  hardship and burden that certain properties face

         21  when subject to the restrictions of the City's

         22  zoning resolution.

         23                 These restrictions, when not   waived

         24  can constitute an unconstitutional taking of private

         25  property, and so the Board of Standards and Appeals
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          2  acts as a pressure valve for these individual claims

          3  so that the universal jurisdiction of the zoning

          4  resolution will not be challenged.

          5                 Still in all, it is important to

          6  fully understand the impact that these decisions may

          7  have on the surrounding communities. And, so, with

          8  that in mind, the delicate balance between the needs

          9  of the developers and property owners and the needs

         10  of the City, and more specifically individual

         11  communities, must be preserved.

         12                 As a candidate for one of the lay

         13  commissioners positions on this Board, I am fully

         14  cognizant of my role in ensuring that the needs of

         15  the community are not subjugated by the needs of the

         16  developers and property owners, but that solutions

         17  are accepted that are acceptable to all parties.

         18                 In closing, I have greatly enjoyed my

         19  role in this process and am deeply committed to

         20  ensuring that this Board is responsive to both

         21  private and public interests and needs. Thank you.

         22                 MS. HINKSON: Good morning. My name is

         23  Susan Hinkson.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Hinkson, can

         25  you press the button? Speak into the mic to see if
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          2  it's on.

          3                 MS. HINKSON: Is it on?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Now it's on.

          5                 MS. HINKSON: Good morning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Good morning.

          7                 MS. HINKSON: I'm Susan Hinkson, and

          8  it's a privilege to be here again seeking

          9  reappointment. Approximately ten months ago I came

         10  before you to seek reappointment to the Board of

         11  Standards and Appeals to fulfill the unexpired term

         12  of Commissioner Satish Babar. At that time this body

         13  confirmed me, and I come before you again to seek

         14  reappointment after serving the remainder of

         15  Commissioner Babar's term.

         16                 At the last hearing, I explained my

         17  reasons for wanting to serve on the Board. I feel it

         18  is important and almost a moral imperative to give

         19  back to the greater community from which you come. I

         20  have worked in both the public and private sectors

         21  as a design and construction professional since

         22  1981. I hold a Bachelor of Architecture Degree from

         23  Pratt Institute and a JD from New York Law School,

         24  and I have been a registered architect for almost 20

         25  years.
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          2                 I was a program manager for the New

          3  York City Department of Cultural Affairs where I

          4  managed the budget design and construction work in

          5  the City on cultural institutions, I was Deputy

          6  Commissioner for Community Planning Development in

          7  Sullivan County New York, where I assisted in the

          8  Development Construction Loan Programs, Main Street

          9  redevelopment and infrastructure development. And

         10  most recently I was Borough Commissioner in both

         11  Brooklyn and Staten Island for the New York City

         12  Department of Building.

         13                 In the past ten months I have learned

         14  much about the work of the Board, and indeed about

         15  myself. I believe during my tenure on the Board I

         16  have brought my expertise as an architect and in the

         17  zoning resolution and the Building Code to bear

         18  fully and completely on the task of evaluating the

         19  appropriateness of zoning variances and special

         20  permits within the confines of the law.

         21                 I look forward to your continued

         22  support and my future work on the Board. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         24  Hinkson.

         25                 I'd like to ask any member of the
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          2  Committee if they have any comments or questions?

          3                 Council Member Fidler.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Surprise

          5  surprise. First, I promised the Speaker that I

          6  wouldn't ruin her birthday and I promised the

          7  Chairperson that I wouldn't ruin her entire day, so

          8  I will keep this relatively brief. And certainly

          9  there is no need to go into the issues that we

         10  raised at the last hearing, Ms. Hinkson. Just

         11  suffice it to say that they were in part fueled by

         12  the Department of Investigation's refusal to

         13  understand a very simple question about an

         14  investigation which they have since acknowledged

         15  actually did occur, and they were denying had

         16  occurred at that time.

         17                 As you recall, you indicated in your

         18  written answers at that time that you were

         19  recommended for your position on the BSA by Sheldon

         20  Lobel, and I questioned what you would do when Mr.

         21  Lobel appeared before you, and now we know what you

         22  would. First, in the 23 public hearings that have

         23  been scheduled since you're appointment, Mr. Lobel

         24  represented applicants on 22 of them, and of the 337

         25  applications that pended before BSA during that
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          2  period of time, Mr. Lobel represented 55 of the 337,

          3  and I want to reiterate for the record that I have

          4  no ethical issues of any kind with Mr. Lobel, who is

          5  a very qualified professional, but certainly his

          6  presence on the BSA calendar as the person who

          7  recommended you to sit on the BSA is significant.

          8                 Forty-nine of those 55 applications

          9  came to a vote and 47 of them were approved.

         10                 You voted on 47 of them, you recused

         11  yourself on two. The two that you recused yourself

         12  on were the two that were denied.

         13                 I would like to ask you whether or

         14  not you don't feel that at very least that creates

         15  an appearance of impropriety and partiality when it

         16  comes to Mr. Lobel's rather significant practice

         17  before the agency which you're asking to be

         18  reaffirmed?

         19                 MS. HINKSON: No, I don't believe that

         20  it does, and for the following reasons: first, that

         21  Mr. Lobel was the president of an organization that

         22  actually sent a letter of support for me, and signed

         23  the letter as President of that organization.

         24  Secondly, Mr. Lobel's firm, and it's his firm, not

         25  necessarily Mr. Lobel personally has come before the
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          2  Board, but his firm in representing his clients,

          3  that the cases that came before us that were

          4  approved were approvable. They were cases in which

          5  they met the findings, they were cases in which I

          6  had not had any personal or even professional,

          7  anything to do with while I was at Buildings

          8  Department or in any other facet of my life, and I

          9  think that the fact that the other Commissioners

         10  voted likely, like in the same manner, would show

         11  that indeed that the applications themselves stand

         12  on their own and were significant and approvable.

         13                 I can't comment on the ones that were

         14  denied because I recused myself from not only voting

         15  on those but all deliberations so I have no real

         16  knowledge of exactly what transpired in those cases.

         17  But I think that answers your question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Inasmuch as

         19  you answered the question in writing as to what

         20  happened on the two cases that you recused yourself

         21  on, I'm a little puzzled by your answer today. But

         22  also I just want to point out for the record that it

         23  is your answer to a written question that said that

         24  Mr. Lobel recommended you for this position. And for

         25  those of us who maintain a law practice or other
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          2  professional practice, to suggest there might be

          3  some difference between Mr. Lobel's office

          4  representing an applicant and Mr. Lobel, I mean the

          5  name of the company is Sheldon Lobel, P.C., is

          6  specious and I will just leave it at that.

          7                 Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          9  Member Fidler.

         10                 I have Council Member James.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         12                 Thank you, Madam Chair, and thank you

         13  for giving me the opportunity to say a few words,

         14  despite the fact that I'm not on this Committee, and

         15  I'm saying some words on behalf of Ms. Susan

         16  Hinkson, someone who served as the Commissioner of

         17  Buildings in the Borough of Brooklyn, someone who

         18  was very responsive to my office and to all of my

         19  constituents, someone who never appeared to have any

         20  impropriety, never any conflict of interest, always

         21  responded in a professional way, and never, ever,

         22  ever gave any appearance of any impropriety.

         23                 So, I stand before you, sit before

         24  you, testifying on behalf of Ms. Hinkson for all

         25  that she has done in the great Borough of Brooklyn
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          2  and throughout the Central Brooklyn. And, so, she is

          3  beyond any repute and beyond any ill-will, and any

          4  criticism as far as I am concerned, and I urge this

          5  Committee to support her in its entirety and fully.

          6  And I am confident that the City Council will

          7  appoint her today.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Are there any

         10  other members for comment or questions? I wanted to

         11  acknowledge the presence of Commissioner Chris

         12  Collins from the BSA as well who has joined us here

         13  today supporting his colleagues. We were joined by

         14  Michael McMahon. I apologize, again, we are running

         15  two, three different hearings simultaneously. I

         16  wanted to give my final comments as far as the BSA

         17  is concerned. There was a moment in time in the

         18  beginning of my tenure where rubber stamping

         19  applications in the BSA was a common practice, and

         20  what I hear and see today is very different. There

         21  is a conscious effort to be certain that applicants

         22  understand what findings are all about, a full

         23  comprehensive approach as to what would merit the

         24  actual findings and for there not to be this

         25  laissezfaire behavior of being able to get the
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          2  variance just because they're requesting it. And I

          3  want to just acknowledge the BSA for the

          4  transformation that they have undergone, partly due

          5  with the management, partly due with new

          6  appointments to the BSA and the talents that they

          7  bring from their backgrounds. So, I congratulate

          8  that you do and have done.

          9                 With that having been said, I'd like

         10  to also acknowledge Council Member Oliver Koppell

         11  who has joined us, but we are ready for a vote, and

         12  I'm waiting for other members to walk in. We've been

         13  joined by Council Member Melinda Katz. Welcome.

         14                 Do we have Billy in the room? Public

         15  testimony will follow if there is anyone signed in.

         16  Sergeant-At-Arms, do we have any public testimony

         17  signed on? Okay. We're going to start roll call.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Reyna.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I vote aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Madam

          6  Chairperson, may I have a brief moment to explain my

          7  vote?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: You may do so.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I continue to

         10  be dissatisfied with the appearances surrounding the

         11  service of Ms. Hinkson on the Board of Standards and

         12  Appeals, and I think her answers today just do

         13  nothing to make me feel any better about it. With

         14  all due respect to the comments that Council Member

         15  James made, and I'm sure that Ms. Hinkson's

         16  performance as DOB Commissioner for Brooklyn in Ms.

         17  James's district may have been exemplary, that

         18  experience is not shared by many of the elected

         19  officials in Southern Brooklyn, the residents of

         20  Kimble Street, the people who live in and around

         21  Kings Plaza, and I am certainly troubled by the data

         22  that I laid out for this Committee regarding one of

         23  the most active practitioners at BSA and Ms.

         24  Hinkson's voting record and conveniently recusing

         25  herself on the only two votes that she would have
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          2  had to cast against his interest, and on none of the

          3  47. It's just an incredible coincidence that today

          4  she can't explain, but she tried to explain in

          5  writing previously. So, I don't really get that.

          6                 So, I vote aye on all and I vote no

          7  on Ms. Hinkson.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Madam Chair,

         10  may I be excused to explain my vote?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: You may do so.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         13                 Well, let me thank you, Madam Chair,

         14  for holding this hearing, and I've reviewed all of

         15  the submissions and the confidential reports that we

         16  have regarding all of the applicants in front of us,

         17  and let me just speak to Dara Ottley-Brown, who I

         18  worked with when she was formerly with the

         19  Commissioner of Finance's Office, and I had a great

         20  working relationship with her, so I at least had the

         21  opportunity to work with her and I have nothing but

         22  positive things to say about her. But I say to all

         23  of the applicants that are up for renewal or

         24  original appointment, even though you are being

         25  recommended by the Mayor, I ask you to please, in
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          2  your capacity, know that you are not a rubber stamp,

          3  that you are individuals with your qualifications

          4  that you have come to this City Council with, and so

          5  you have a right to stand up and to argue and to

          6  fight for what you think is right. And so I give you

          7  the same message that I've given to my nephew who is

          8  a police officer, my nephew who is a traffic

          9  enforcement agent, treat people like you want to be

         10  treated, knowing that even though you're part of a

         11  board or a commission, you know, sometimes you have

         12  to stand up and do what's right and speak the truth,

         13  and so I ask all of you to do that and please do not

         14  be part of that rubber that makes a rubber stamp and

         15  say, well, have people say they're nothing but a

         16  rubber stamp. So, speak up for justice and truth for

         17  the people of New York City.

         18                 I vote aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: With

         21  congratulations to Dr. Maese, who is a constituent

         22  of mine at Bayridge, and who has done a wonderful

         23  job at Victory Memorial Hospital, I vote aye on all,

         24  except for Susan Hinkson. Time is short, I have had

         25  concerns about Ms. Hinkson much as along the lines
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          2  of Councilman Fidler, I will rely on his results --

          3  on his remarks, and vote no on Susan Hinkson.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Madam Chair, to

          6  explain my vote?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: You may do so.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I would also

          9  first like to welcome Commissioner Collins to the

         10  Chamber, he was Counsel to the Land Use Committee

         11  for many years, and did great things for the City of

         12  New York in that role and he's doing it now at the

         13  BSA.

         14                 I'd also like to just give my word of

         15  support and thanks for taking on the job at HHC to

         16  Anna Kril, who I worked with when I was at Borough

         17  Hall, and it's a great thing to see her here ten

         18  years later or eight years later, whatever it is. We

         19  have survived the years, and it's good to see you

         20  again.

         21                 I'm going to vote aye on all, Madam

         22  Chair. I guess the only thing that I would say is

         23  that as Chair of the Land Use Committee there are

         24  many times that I also have to look at Conflicts of

         25  Interest and make decisions as far as when you move
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          2  forward on applications, and I guess the only thing,

          3  I am going to vote aye on her, but that I would say

          4  to Ms. Hinkson is that, if there is a sense out

          5  there that perhaps there is a semblance of something

          6  out there by Councilman Fidler and by some other

          7  Council members, maybe as we move forward, you might

          8  want to just reconsider how we go about things and

          9  how you choose to make sure that that sense is not

         10  out there. So, I ask that, I truly do, because there

         11  is so many applications that you would have to deal

         12  with on that level, but I trust that you are doing

         13  the right thing and I trust that you are a good

         14  commissioner and a good person on that board, as per

         15  your recommenders, so I vote aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I'd like to

         18  congratulate this morning's candidates and thank

         19  them for the service to the City of New York. I

         20  don't have personal knowledge of all of you, but

         21  your records are outstanding and certainly, like so

         22  many public servants, your remuneration is not equal

         23  to the hard work that you render. I do just want to

         24  say for the record that I want to disagree politely

         25  and collegially with some of my colleagues, because
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          2  my experience working with Susan Hinkson is quite

          3  different. She was in charge of the Department of

          4  Buildings on Staten Island for a period and she was

          5  always forthright and I think that she's a great

          6  public servant, and I proudly vote yes for her.

          7                 I, too, want to thank Dr. John Maese,

          8  who has done a great job representing all the

          9  people, especially Staten Island, on the Board of

         10  HHC, an organization that still doesn't know that

         11  there are five boroughs, Staten Island being one, we

         12  are greatly underserved, greatly under-financed by

         13  HHC. But that's something that Dr. Maese works every

         14  day to correct. And to all of you, I thank you, and

         15  I proudly vote aye on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Speaker Quinn.

         17                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you. Thank you

         18  very much. I, too, want to vote aye on all, but just

         19  as the former Chair of the Health Committee, I would

         20  be remiss if I didn't say a particular thank you to

         21  those who are getting re-renewed to the Health and

         22  Hospitals Corporation and new members of the Health

         23  and Hospital Corporation.

         24                 Of course Ms. Kril and I worked

         25  together on breast cancer issues for a number of
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          2  years, and I was lucky enough to serve as Health

          3  Chair part of the time that Dr. Maese was on the HHC

          4  Board, and I know that the work he's done, as Mike

          5  said, has been great for the whole City, but in

          6  particular, he's incredibly dedicated and diligent

          7  in making the point that this is a five-borough

          8  City, that Staten Island, for better or worse, has

          9  some very, very unique health care challenges that

         10  we in City government are not always doing what we

         11  should to meet. And I've seen him do that on the HHC

         12  Board, I've seen him do that when I've gone out at

         13  nights to go to medical association meetings, at

         14  town hall meetings, so he is somebody who really is

         15  a community doctor in the best sense of the word.

         16  And I want to thank him for re-upping, suggest he

         17  might want to go see the Mental Health part of the

         18  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, because

         19  there's a lot of work, but I want to thank him.

         20                 And I just want to thank you so much,

         21  Ms. Kril. You've been a fighter for people who are

         22  suffering from breast cancer for so long in the

         23  City. And at a time when sadly the rates of women

         24  going to get mammograms is decreasing, it's going to

         25  be very important to have your voice on behalf of
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          2  Queens, but all of the women of the City of New York

          3  on the Health and Hospitals Corporation Board urging

          4  more attention to those and other matters. So, thank

          5  all of you. I love BSA and the Board of Health and

          6  everything else, too, but I have a particular

          7  fondness for the Health and Hospitals Corporation,

          8  so I wish you all the best of luck in all of your

          9  different roles.

         10                 And thank you very much, Madam Chair,

         11  and I vote aye on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: May I be

         14  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair.

         18                 I recently had an opportunity, I

         19  think just a few weeks ago, to actually appear

         20  before the Board of Standards and Appeals as a local

         21  Council member, obviously just representing the

         22  community in opposition to a particular project, and

         23  I was actually very, very impressed with the hot

         24  bench of the Board of Standards and Appeals. Susan

         25  Hinkson, Dara Ottley-Brown, as well as Vice Chair
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          2  Chris Collins, who, of course, I knew from his

          3  service here in the City Council, and they asked a

          4  lot of questions, and they reserved judgment, and

          5  I'm not trying to influence the outcome, mind you,

          6  by this statement, but I was very favorably

          7  impressed with the questions they asked, because I

          8  happen to have sat in on a few of the matters. It

          9  was only the second time before I actually appeared

         10  before the Board of Standards and Appeals, the first

         11  time was in 2002, and I don't believe any of the

         12  current members were on the Board at that time, and

         13  I just want to state that I happily will vote to

         14  reconfirm Susan Hinkson and Dara Ottley-Brown, and I

         15  think they're doing an outstanding job.

         16                 And I just want to state on behalf of

         17  proposed nominee Anna Kril, who I know for a number

         18  of years, and has been involved in so many important

         19  community and civic activities in my home Borough of

         20  Queens. I think she will make an outstanding Board

         21  member of the Health and Hospitals Corporation, and

         22  I proudly vote aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dickens.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Madam Chair,

         25  permission to explain my vote?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: You may do so.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you.

          4                 I wanted to congratulate all of this

          5  morning's candidates, either for your appointment or

          6  your reappointment. Today was a prime, prime example

          7  of democracy at work, where in this very important

          8  Committee there are members who agree and others who

          9  disagree and so stated. Today I have, like my

         10  colleague Council Member Sears, four interns, Urani,

         11  Kateland, Lamar and Scott, and they have the

         12  opportunity as young adults of the future of the

         13  City of New York, those who have possibilities of

         14  being elected to sit here, can see how we work on

         15  City government.

         16                 And Ms. Hinkson, I saw where you did

         17  recuse yourself in several instances with Mr. Lobel,

         18  and I commend you for that. It is very difficult

         19  because you have a job to do, and sometimes you have

         20  to determine whether it's time to recuse yourself

         21  and when it's not necessary. So, I'm glad to see

         22  that where you found it was necessary, you did so,

         23  and I only ask that you continue to give that

         24  thought process as you continue to be on BSA.

         25                 Again, thank you to all of you for
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          2  being willing to be a part of City government. Thank

          3  you, Madam Chair, and I vote yes on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Garodnick.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I would just

          8  like to reiterate my praise for Dr. Maese, and tell

          9  him that knowing he has to deal with certain senior

         10  VPs and other folks in the HHC hierarchy, I will

         11  keep him in my thoughts and prayers.

         12                 And I would just like to say that my

         13  relationship with the Department of Buildings is

         14  sort of heralded in this body and we've all had to

         15  laugh at some of the fun times, but on a serious

         16  note it's improved markedly in the last year and

         17  plus and the turn-around really started when Susan

         18  Hinkson became the Borough Commissioner on Staten

         19  Island, and I think very highly of her and while I

         20  respect my colleagues' concerns, I share the

         21  experience of Council Member McMahon on Staten

         22  Island. She was an asset to our borough. She was

         23  fair and honest and that's all we can ask for in any

         24  public servant. I vote yes on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 15 in the
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          2  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          3  abstentions, all items are adopted, with the

          4  exception of M 663, which is adopted by a vote of 13

          5  in the affirmative, two in the negative and no

          6  abstentions.

          7                 Council members, please sign all

          8  Committee reports, and thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'd like to take

         10  this opportunity to thank the staff of this

         11  Committee, Barbara, our Counsel, Crystal, Reggie,

         12  Charles, who are the Investigative Unit, for all

         13  their work in trying to get to this point.

         14                 Seeing no public testimonies,

         15  congratulations to our appointees, and this meeting

         16  is adjourned. Thank you.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 12:14 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 25th day of July 2007.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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